Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Regular Meeting of January 17, 2018

A meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commissiontii@r Village of Lemont was held at 6:30
p.m. on Wednesday, January 17, 2018 in the sedoodBoard Room of the Village Hall, 418
Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 86.m. He then led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

B. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present. Cunningham, Glomp, McGleam, Plahm, Zal&yxinelli
Absent: Forzley

Community Development Director Jason Berry, ComsgllPlanner Jamie Tate and
Village Trustee Ron Stapleton were also present.

C. Approval of Minutes: November 15, 2017 Meeting

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner Cunningham to
approve the minutes from November 15, 2017 meetitiy no changes. A voice
vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli greeted the audience. He thkadsveryone in the audience to
stand and raise his/her right hand. He then adteired the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 17-15 SAINTS CYRIL & METHODIUS PARISH CENTER SETBAC K
VARIATION

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tlubl hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ission Cunningham to
open thepublic hearing for Case 17-15. A voice vote w&eia



Ayes. All
Nays: None
Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said the applisar@questing a variation to the
UDO for rear setback. The requested variation sllbw a rear setback of 16 feet 9
inches instead of the 30 feet that is requiredhénR-4A Zoning District. They want

to construct a new parish center on the site. stifigect property is zoned R-4A
Single-Family Preservation & Infill District. P#ére UDO, churches are a special use
in the R-4A Zoning District. While the original plcation was proposing rezoning,
staff looked at the history of the subject site #r@lexistence of several churches
within residential districts. Staff's desire isft@intain the existing residential zoning
for future uses. It is typical to find churcheg@sidential zoning even while the
classified land use might be Institutional.

There are four parcels that make up the campuseahtersection of Sobieski Street
and Ledochowski Street. Parcel 1 is the soutlwaser of the intersection and the
location of all proposed changes and construct®atcel 1 currently contains an
existing church, a two-story brick rectory buildjrgframe garage, a brick garage, a
playground area, and asphalt parking lot and opanes The parcel has a significant
grade change with retaining walls along the sidkwal both Czacki Street and
Moczygemba Street.

Mrs. Tate stated the applicant is proposing to dsiméhe existing rectory building,
two garages, and playground area to construct aliiedv4 square foot parish center.
The new parish will be attached to the existindlQ1,square foot church. The
interior of the new parish center is mainly offiGagl meeting rooms. It is
categorized as “office” for off-street parking amdjuires 38 parking stalls. The
existing parking lot is going to remain and theg proposing additional parking
along Ledochowski Street with 7 parking stalls vilhall bring them to 226 parking
stalls for the entire campus.

The new parish center meets all lot dimensionaldsteds except the rear setback. R-
4A requires a minimum 30’ setback from the rearperty line and the applicant is
proposing 16’-9” which is 13’-3” short of the reged minimum. There is an existing
side yard setback nonconformity that is 8’-1” frtime side property line to the
nearest point. The code today would require amunn of 27’ of a setback, but the
church was constructed in 1930 and most likelhattime there were no side yard
setbacks.

A tree survey, tree preservation plan and landspépewill be required as part of the
site development process and must meet all regon&afound in the UDO. The

Village Engineer, Fire Marshall and Arborist havade comments in regards to this
application and are included in staff's packet. nylaf the comments are preliminary



and will be addressed through the site developmermhit process. The architect has
been responsive and is already addressing comments.

Mrs. Tate then read through the Standards for Yans which were included in
staff's packet. The architect did provide a pietaf what the view would look like
from the rear setback as far as what the distameddabe from the street. Lastly,
staff does recommend approval contingent on compdiavith outstanding
comments.

Chairman Spinelli said the total lot coverage shdovriot 1 is 67.6%. From looking
at the site plan it seems a little low and wouldktthat it would be greater than 70%.

Mrs. Tate stated she could verify it with the \I&Engineer.

Commissioner McGleam asked what are staff's recomaaigons.

Mrs. Tate said she didn’t really have commentsrétiter items that would be

required for the process. One of the questiortsstia had was the replacement of the

playground and where that is going.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Village Engineensldire Marshall's comments
have been addressed.

Ben Deanda, Fire Marshall, stated he has not sgearswers to his comments at
this time.

Mrs. Tate said that is one of the conditions thaytneed to be incompliance with
any outstanding comments.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Village Engineer &n@ Marshall seen the response
letter from January 1

Mrs. Tate stated she included it in the packetitdws not been forwarded on at this
time.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions for staff at this time.
None responded. He then asked if the applicantedlaio make a presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Karen Kristianson, Newman Architecture, introdu€edher Valdi Stawiarski of St.
Cyril and Methodius Parish (SSCM).

Father Valdi thanked the Commission for their tiamel consideration of this case.
St. Cyril has been a part of this community for @150 years providing religious
and education opportunities for people who livéhe@ community and within the



vicinity. The new parish center is something thaty have thought of for the last
decade or more. They have been working out ofgbiry which was meant to be
the residence for the priest. The last few yaanas been turned into office space
and meeting space. They need something more piofed to provide services for
the parishioners and those who are part of the aomtyn They have been raising
money to address this need and have come up vistbehutiful building which will
complement the church. He thanked the Commisgiamédor their time and
consideration.

Ms. Kristianson said she would like to address#péoof concerns. The playground
will move across the street by the school. Theymn addressing the Fire Marshall
comments before final building permit drawings.eifttivil engineer reached out to
the Village's Engineer to address some of his comsalso. There are a couple of
reasons for the placement on the site. Therdaigya existing gathering plaza on the
north side and they didn’t want to in hinge on th@here is also a connection to go
back into the existing church so there is an adslessonnection. Because of that
connection it had landlocked where the buildingldait. So there is a reason why it
was placed there. She stated she is availabEnfpguestions.

Chairman Spinelli said on the site plan there apgpabe a grass area between the
pavers that are being extended and the building.

Ms. Kristianson stated that is correct. Part eftib is where it connects into the
building. They want the church to be the domirfaature on the sight which is why
they are using similar materials to make this blegether. If they push farther
forward they would go into the parking area and/tthe not want to lose parking
either.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the trees that are sheeuth of the addition going to
remain.

Ms. Kristianson said that is the intent. One @fthings that they will be working on
before they come back for building permit is thediscape plan and tree preservation
plan.

Chairman Spinelli stated there is a storm sewdrish@ming out of the southwest
corner of the detention basin right through about 6f the trees. If the intent is to
preserve them then that outlet storm sewer neebis &aljusted for a better attempt to
save those trees. He asked if the relocated stapset of this addition.

Ms. Kristianson said there are two statues thdtsmiltch places.

Commissioner McGleam asked what does this setbaektigem inside the building.

Ms. Kristianson showed a layout of what the buipill look like on the inside. If
they were to shorten the building they would benlgsneeting room space. One of



the goals was to be able to fit 150 people at sahtel chairs. If they don’t have this
then they are losing a major function of the buigdi

Chairman Spinelli stated if they rotated the ro@@slegrees and had two meeting
rooms you would be able to fit about 270 peoplehairs.

Ms. Kristianson said it might be possible but slould have to look further into that.
This parish is very pressed for meeting space.y ©héy have one small meeting
room in the existing rectory. To be able to hdwe¢ rooms to subdivide gives them
the ultimate flexibility for different ministriesuting the day and not have to be in the
school trying to meet with kids around.

Chairman Spinelli asked if prior to drawing thisdid they meet with staff.

Ms. Kristianson stated they met with staff eitheduly or August of 2017. They
wanted to make sure that the Building DepartmedtRanning Development was
good with it. Besides the variance staff had pddbethe rezoning of the property
which is why they submitted with the rezoning. ekftvorking with Mrs. Tate, staff
felt there was no need to rezone the parcels.

Commissioner Zolecki asked where are they now thighproject.

Ms. Kristianson said they just finished bidding drale selected a general contractor.
So they are waiting to move forward based on apgisoand hope to start the project
right after Easter.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if they planned on agldiny additional landscaping to
the south.

Ms. Kristianson stated that the entire parcel wdnade to be brought up to code in
regards to landscaping.

Commissioner Zolecki said they need to considdrgbath side specifically with the
elevations and how it relates to those meeting soand the homes across the street.
There is a home across the street that has setmmydssndows. He would
recommend screening with some evergreen treeseosothth. The same
consideration needs to be taken with lighting anldbilding. The elevations can
make it deceiving. There also needs to be moeesarg for mechanicals on the
southwest corner. Staff's Engineer had commemedine degree about the
retaining wall on the east and mentioned visuadesting which he is assuming
landscaping on top of that wall. He asked if theuld consider a form liner or
decorative concrete for the wall. This might heith the visual instead of a blank
concrete wall.

Commissioner Cunningham asked if anyone curreivdslin the rectory and is there
any residency planned for the new parish center.



Father Valdi stated he currently lives in the regtolhey are planning on possibly
using a house across the street that they ownrectary so there will be no
residency at the new parish.

Chairman Spinelli asked if at the time they had migt staff, did they advise you to
proceed with as much drawings as was done withrdhiance that was being
requested.

Ms. Kristianson said not at that time. They weenping on coming before the
Commission much sooner, but when they asked forghening they had to get some
alta surveys done. They had a difficult time geftihem and they were not able to
submit back until towards November and then themdbout they did not need them.

Chairman Spinelli stated there has been a lot afeyjspent on the drawings. He is
not sure where the break down happened, but thmydhave been advised to
proceed with caution before spending all the maethe drawings. The variance is
for a 50% reduction on a setback.

Ms. Kristianson said when they had met with theere¢hwere not that many concerns
about what they are proposing and the directionttiey are taking, therefore they
weren’t as hesitant.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they got a sensethiegtwere proceeding at risk.
Ms. Kristianson stated probably. They wanted tansitiearlier but with the added
variance requirement and some additional stuff edddr the variance it delayed
their submittal.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Commission had amiher questions for the
applicant at this time. None responded. He tisied if there was anyone in the
audience that wanted to come up and speak in reg@attlis public hearing.

Public Comment

Beverly Young, 601 Ledochowski Street, asked wiethe playground going to be
located.

Chairman Spinelli said his understanding is thaytre going to move it north of the
church.

Ms. Young asked what is going to be located whieeeptayground was and how
many feet from the street will the building be.

Chairman Spinelli stated part of it will be buildin



Mrs. Tate said the variance is from Moczygembaebtndich is south. There is no
variance from Ledochowski Street because it idaek significantly.

Ms. Kristianson stated she wanted to clarify that playground is going in the grassy
area by the parking lot on the southeast sidevilllbe located on parcel 4.

Jeff Wandersen, 600 Moczygemba Street, said @ rmsch above street level and so
close to the street that he is concerned thatlinvake the street seem narrow.

Chairman Spinelli stated from the plans that hedes both retaining walls are
going to remain. He asked if there were any mastions or comments from the
audience. None responded. He then called fortammto close the public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byniissioner Zolecki to close
the public hearing for Case 17-15. A voice votea vaken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli stated that Moczygemba Streeairsow and the homes on the
south side are also very close to the roadway. l8idscape plan should include
some lower type plantings to break up the viewlldfalding along the upper
retaining wall. He is disappointed if the applicams not advised as to how much of
a variance they would be asking for. The curréaffisg was not there at the time
and he does not know who they met with. This mighsomething that they need to
discuss with the current staff.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furthmnments from the Commission.
None responded. He then called for a motion foomemendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to

recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 17-15 St. Cyril &

Methodius Parish Center Rear Setback Variation thhfollowing conditions:

1. Comply with Fire District comments.

2. Comply with Village Engineer comments

3. Review potential conflict between the proposedmstsewer at the detention area
and the existing trees.

4. Review additional landscape screening to the seletration.

5. Review lighting at the south elevation to ensuredweerse effects to neighboring

properties.

Review mechanical screening at the southwest carfridse proposed building.

Review form liner or architectural treatments te gnoposed retaining wall.

N o



A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes. McGleam, Cunningham, Zolecki, Glomp, Plahm, Spinelli
Nays: None

Motion passed

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion for FindingfsFact.

Commissioner Glomp made a motion, seconded by Cesmwmer McGleam to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 17-15 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 18-02 New Horizon Homes Rezoning 1¥7and Rolling Meadows

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open thblg hearing for Case 18-02.
Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Glomp to open
the public hearing for Case 18-02. A voice vota vaken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Mrs. Tate, Consulting Planner, said John Jurinedes# Horizon Home Builders, the
owner the subject property, is seeking rezoninghf& 3 Arterial Commercial

District to R-5 Single Family Attached District.n@ purpose of the rezoning change
is to allow the construction of a residential swiklon comprised of approximately
22 single-family detached dwelling units. The sabjproperty is 8.5 acres and the
Comprehensive Plan designates this area as Empia\Oaenter.

In 1996, approximately 76 acres were annexed anddzwhich included 42 acres of
R-4 Single-Family Detached Zoning District and 84ea of B-3 Commercial Zoning
District. In 2002, there was an amendment to theekxation Agreement for this site
rezone 18.09 acres of the B-3 Arterial Commerciatrizt to R-4 Detached Single-
Family District. After the rezoning was approvedly 15.91 acres of land fronting
127" Street remained as B-3 Arterial Commercial Distrit has been slowly
reduced over the years to become residential. r@zening of this proposal would
remove the opportunity of a commercial project asato the 1-355 exit at 197
Street. She showed on the overhead the subjegéfycand the property that is
owned by the Illinois Tollway.

Mrs. Tate stated the proposal is for the rezonmg and the plans included are
conceptual and preliminary in nature to demonstitaeapplicant’s reasoning for the



rezoning. The plans show one east-west streeif &blling Meadows Drive
terminating with a cul-de-sac that abuts Tollwagperty and Lemont Park District
property. There are 22 single-family dwelling snithich are approximately 11,000
square feet to 12,000 square feet. At this tilme proposed lots would require
exceptions within the PUD including but not limitexd

¢ Reduced minimum side yard setback to 10 feet frérfeg&t

e Reduced minimum corner side yard setback to 15ffeet 25 feet

¢ Reduced pavement width to 27 feet from 30 feet

The Comprehensive Plan shows the area as Employoegier. The primary benefit
is generating local employment, and may have arskeg benefit of providing
useful services to local residents. Whereas réistiticts primarily exist to provide
services of use to residents and visitors, withsémondary benefit of adding
employment. The buildings in this type of distnetry widely in size but are
generally no more than three stories high. WithexComprehensive Plan, a Target
Industries report was created. It identifies tarations within the Village or its
planning area as economic activity centers. Theseity centers are the locations
where the Village’s targeted industries are alrdadgted or may be located in the
future. This area being proposed for a zoning ghas one of the Economic Activity
Centers that is a growth target area for the healtl industry and the professional,
scientific & technical service industry.

Mrs. Tate said they did look at the LaSalle factorghe standards for rezoning and
also general analysis which looks at consistently the Comprehensive Plan,
compatibility with existing land use, and transptidn and access. She then read
through the LaSalle factors and general analysiediin staff's packet. A Technical
Review Committee meeting was held on December B7 20 discuss the rezoning
and potential residential subdivision. The Villdgegineer had comments related to
stormwater management. The Fire Department hackcommbout the cul-de-sac size.
The Planning Department had concerns about thezes and setback variance
requests. They would like to see a safe pedestdanection, a landscape buffer
between the rear yards and uniform landscapingweier, they also have concerns
about changing the zoning when it does not meefutiuee land use map. The
Lemont Police Department has concerns about digeéing, adding a stop bar and
stop sign and providing a safe lit connection @ phark with a sidewalk.
Representatives from the Lemont Park District nem@d concerns about impact fees
and expressed they are open to a pedestrian caoomécim the cul-de-sac to

Mayfair Park.

The proposed rezoning would not follow the futued use map in the
Comprehensive Plan but would allow for faster depelent as the applicant is ready
to start building homes. The proposed rezoninglevcemove the opportunity for a
non-residential use at the west exist of*"1afd I-355. Staff is available for any
guestions and the applicant is present also.



Chairman Spinelli asked what was the purpose offdhaest being R-5 and not the
R-4 zoning. His concern is that the R-5 zoningsdal®ow for duplexes. The current
rezoning request is not tied to a preliminary plaéranteeing single-family detached
houses.

Mrs. Tate stated it allowed for smaller lot siz8he applicant had no intention of
building attached dwellings.

Mr. Berry asked if they could make it a condition.

Chairman Spinelli said they could not since therea preliminary plat attached to it.
He would rather see an R-4 Zoning request and whenhave a plat they can come
back and ask for variances on lot sizes or attitmet change it to R-5 when they are
definitely platting single-family detached lots.

Mr. Berry stated their intention was to get thidriont of the PZC early. The
guestion at hand is should this piece of propegtydzoned from commercial to
residential.

Commissioner McGleam asked what is the recommeaed&iom staff.

Mr. Berry said it is hard to make a recommendaturen the Comprehensive Plan
states that the property should be commercials B commercial piece that is on
the very edge of Cook County which makes it veffialilt to develop. This is a
higher level of discussion because there are gikees of properties from Rolling
Meadows to Smith Road that are also zoned comntercia

Chairman Spinelli stated one difference with thps®perties is that they have direct
access to 127Street. He travels this area a lot and feelsttiistcommercial piece
unfortunately is on the wrong side of the interd@nHe does not see this piece of
property being commercial.

Mr. Berry said when this was annexed in there voaex 30 acres that were
commercial. Over the years it was chipped awayitngicame less and less practical
as a commercial piece.

Chairman Spinelli asked when the original subdoristame in was the park donation
based on the number of residential units or acreage

Mr. Berry stated he did not look at that.
Mr. Jurinek, applicant, stated on the first ancoselcphase they gave the money. On
the third phase they gave two acres of land arndghehat they are going to

developing.

Discussion continued in regards to impact fees.

10



Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheestions for staff. None
responded. He then asked the applicant to makesamation.

Applicant Presentation

John D. Jurinek, New Horizon Homes Builders, shid tommercial land has been
listed on and off for the last 14 to 15 years anthe last two years consistently.
There have been only two to three interested partigther the taxes are too high, or
there is not enough land or too much land. Theleethat have bought homes from
them do not want to see commercial go up on timak larhey would prefer more
homes.

Chairman Spinelli asked if in their sales officetdey have a drawing indicating that
property is zoned commercial.

Mr. Jurinek stated that they verbally tell all thelients that it is zoned commercial
and they do not know what the future of that proper They do let them know that
they are trying to change the zoning and theystitchase them.

Chairman Spinelli said they have heard his comseatlier in regards to R-5
zoning. He is confident that they will not buildmlexes, but his hesitation is that it
would entitle them to. He asked if they would ades R-4 zoning.

John Jurinek, Sr. stated when they originally wafleng that is what they were
looking at, but it was recommended to go with thB.RThey are planning to build 22
single-family homes. Their design of homes areavawith side loaded garages and
that is what they want to continue. Their godbiget this zoned residential and they
do not care if it is R-4 or R-5. This property wibt sell as commercial. As far as
the impact fees, they will do whatever is requirddhey plan on building the same
type of homes that are on Willow Drive, but thesk just be a little bit smaller.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesjions for the applicant. None
responded. He then asked if there was anyoneiautience that wanted to speak in
regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

Regina Miller,16482 Pasture Drive, said she enjoys the bealnies that the
Jurinek’s have built. The 19 years that she heesllthere she has driven past a
vacant parcel. She understands that it is zoneuh@cial; however in her mind it
does not make sense to have a commercial propettyreéo Rolling Meadows,
which is a safety concern.

Gladstone Mechler, 12727 Smith Road, asked if tbpgrty to the south was being
developed and who owns the property to the north.

11



Chairman Spinelli stated that the property to thtls is being developed and the
property to the north is owned by the Tollway.

Mr. Mechler asked what the zoning was for the prog®ein Phase One and Two.
Chairman Spinelli said they are zoned R-4.
Mr. Mechler stated it would make sense to zonetties R-4.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elsaeraudience that wanted to speak
in regards to this case. None responded. Hedsbleed the representative from the
Lemont Park District if he could comment about anprovement plans for the
existing park.

Larry Rizzo, Director of Parks and Maintenancelfemont Park District, said they
are in the process of scheduling construction efriéw Mayfair Park. It is going to
be starting the spring of this year. They aréhefirocess of purchasing the access
property from the Tollway. They have preliminatgups for utilizing that property
but there is no real commitment to that. Theystittopen for improving their
development in any way. The Park District doesttest residential would be a good
decision for that commercial property and it wobdtla nice addition to the Mayfair
Park. They are in favor of having access to th& fram the new development.

Pat Jurinek, New Horizon Homes, stated their miasi dlways been for single family
homes. She asked if they did the R-4 with a PUDthay come before the
Commission and ask for the variances and side lbthiey can't then that is why
they would go for the R-5. The need a minimumaids to make this financially
feasible for them to move forward. Otherwise thuld rather leave that land
vacant and get a different piece of land that tdwyd develop.

Chairman Spinelli said the current proposal at iR-ill asking for a side yard
setback. The R-4 will be requiring the same exagtiest. The minimum square
footage on an R-4 size lot is 12,500 and the minmmidth is 90 feet. He would
personally support residential, and without se@imdan would probably support
reduced lot sizes to keep it R-4. The other pd@kistif they were coming in with a
final plat at the same time as the R-5 zoning, balévthen possible consider the R-5
zoning because the plat is going with it. He ustierds that they don’t want to spend
the money if they don’'t know if they are going tet ghe zoning. He would prefer at
this point that the request be change to an R-thgaequest and move forward as an
R-4 as opposed to an R-5.

Mr. Berry stated that the public notice is a reqésrezoning and does not specify
that it is an R-5 so it would be appropriate enotegbonsider an R-4.

12



Eric Peterson, 16531 Willow Drive, said he just madwn recently and did know that
there was vacant commercial property behind th&here are a lot of other vacant
buildings in Lemont. Even though this one haseal@scess to 1355, their
anticipation was that it was not necessarily dgyalide as commercial. He is in
support of rezoning the property to single-famibnies, but agrees that it should be
rezoned as R-4. He did not buy this home to hawigi-fiamily dwellings behind

him.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elsaeraudience that wanted to speak
in regards to this public hearing. None respondéd.then called for a motion to
close the public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byniissioner Zolecki to close
the public hearing for Case 18-02. A voice votes vaken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli said he stated several timesl@atould rather see this parcel as
an R-4 zoning. He does not see it as commercéaus® there is no direct access to
127" Street. The Employment Center designation is3aviich is a less restrictive
zoning then all the other stuff on 12@nd it still can't sell. He feels this is on the
wrong side of the highway. He supports resideiiglwith the R-4 zoning.

Commissioner Glomp stated the neighborhood grearapnd this when they
envisioned this. He feels it also needs to go-th R

Commissioner Cunningham said it is nice to sedutae plans but this is purely just
rezoning.

Chairman Spinelli asked the applicant if they wolikd to revise the request from an
R-5 to a different zoning.

Mrs. Jurinek stated her concern is if she asks foontinuance and come back asking
for R-5 with a plat attached showing single-fantitymes they could always deny it.
She would want to know if this is a viable thing them to do.

Chairman Spinelli said instead of asking for a tw#nce, because she has only
heard their opinion and not the Village Board,i&ontinue and hear the Village
Board’s opinion prior to spending any money on sysvand/or plats.

Mr. Jurinek, Sr. stated they would like proceed eln@nge the rezoning to R-4
single-family.

13



Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions or comments. None
responded. He then called for a motion for recondagon.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees apahCase 18-02 rezoning
from B-3 Arterial Commercial to R-4 Single-Familyefached District. A roll call
vote was taken:

Ayes. Zolecki, Cunningham, McGleam, Glomp, Plahm, Spinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion for FindingfsFact.

Commissioner Glomp made a motion, seconded by Cesmwmer McGleam to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 18-02 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

ACTION ITEMS

A. 17-14 - 1166 MCCARTHY ROAD MIERZWA SUBDIVISION

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said Wanda Mierngwiae Trustee of the Mierzwa
Family Member of Trust, who are the owners of thigject property. They are being
represented by John Antonopoulos who could notresemt this evening. They are
seeking a Final Plat of Subdivision for the purpotereating an additional lot to
construct a single-family detached residence. rTh&iacre lot is proposed to be
divided into two single-family lots and staff iscoenmending approval.

The surrounding land use is R-4 Single-Family Die¢alcResidential. Lot 1 will
house the existing residence and Lot 2 will haeertéw single-family resident. Both
lots will meet the lot size and lot width. There ao plans at this time for the new
residence but at the time of construction, impaesiwill be calculated and paid.
There is no concerns with access or traffic. TBEOUwill require landscaping and
landscape trees at the time of permit for the negls-family residence.

Mrs. Tate stated the Village Engineer has requgsteldninary engineering to show
that water and sewer are available to each plétedrhe applicant’s engineer
requested relief from the water for the new sirighaily home. There is water from a
well on the property. He stated that sewer runkiwthe west side of the front yard

14



ROW and they will comply with Village standards faynnection. The applicant’s
engineer states that drainage is in an existirghdiystem on McCarthy Road arfl 6
Street without curb and gutter. The Fire Marshatl no comments and the Village
Arborist made comments listed in staff's packele Showed on the overhead an
aerial view of the subject property and said sats recommend approval.

Chairman Spinelli clarified that it was the appti€a engineer that is requesting relief
from the water requirement.

Mrs. Tate said that is correct.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they received anythirgnf the applicant that they may
have received preliminary approval from Cook Coutealth Department that would
allow a well on this lot.

Mrs. Tate stated she has not seen anything fronk Coointy Health Department.
She does not believe that staff has asked for that.

Commissioner McGleam asked if the Village Engirsmnmented on the request to
use a shared well.

Mr. Berry said he has not.

Chairman Spinelli stated he has an issue with resending approval of a
subdivision when we don’t know if Cook County Héalepartment will approve a
well on it. He asked staff what happens if thegrape the lot for a well and then
find out the lot is too small for a well. He recovanded tabling the item until more
information is provided on the well.

Discussion continued in regards to the well andsthe of the lot.

Applicant Presentation

Judie Mechalek said this is her mom’s property simelhas lived there for over 70
years. Everyone or'&Street has wells and everyone §hStreet has water. Their
intention was selling this other lot and using pineceeds to help take care of her
mother. For this area, sewers were brought im #feetornado hit, but everyone kept
their wells.

Chairman Spinelli stated they are not against tak wHe just wants to make sure
that if the County states that a certain acreageeésled they have the ability to adjust
the lot line accordingly before it is recorded.

Trustee Stapleton said he believes you cannotsti@eed well.

Mrs. Mechalek stated she knows and would not duasgesl well.

15



John Mechalek asked if that is the only issue.

Chairman Spinelli said they are only looking at tésubdivision. There are no
engineering drawings for them to look at. Thereusth be no issues that he could see
once they confirm what the minimum lot size neexdbé for the well.

Commissioner Zolecki stated fundamentally therenaréssues.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elsaeraudience that wanted to speak
in regards to this case.

Public Comment

None

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to

recommend a continuation of Case 17-14 to the aeadlable meeting for the

following reason:

1. To allow the applicant time to research Cook Cosridublic Health Department
requirements for minimum lot size for a well.

A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

GENERAL DISCUSSION

A. Update from Village Board

Mr. Berry said the Pasture Drive Shed Variation gal before the COW (Committee
of the Whole) on February 19 At the next Village Board meeting, they shoudd b
approving the 13¥ Court Annexation and Rezoning. Donegal shoulddraing
before the Village Board also.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the met all of the coioahis.

Mr. Berry stated the screening was discussed gthesind it was proposed to the
Village Board that they would provide a donatioritie Village for trail or other
landscape improvements in lieu of the screenintherbridge. The concern was
getting the IDOT approval and the maintenance. dibeussion started with getting
the maintenance bond to providing this donatiohe Kotlin Annexation, Rezoning
and Preliminary Plat will also be at the next boaekting.

16



VI.

VII.

Commissioner McGleam asked what the deadline wageting a public hearing on
an agenda.

Mr. Berry said it is 15 days but they generallytstal days.
Discussion continued in regards to when the Comansss receive staff's packet.

Commissioner McGleam asked if there was any upalaigetting the utility easement
for Ruffled Feather’s sanitary sewer.

Mr. Berry said public works and the Village Enginbave been looking at it. There
are some issues with some of the ponds in thenethso he thinks they are looking
at it in a comprehensive way.

Chairman Spinelli stated the roundabout on Chris¢orive in Rolling Meadows,

the very first home on the south side, has largegsaat least three to four times a

year. The roundabout is designed so cars cannbtipere. People who attend the
party always park in the roundabout which is cagisirsafety hazard. He asked if

public works can put up no parking signs there.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to adjoure theeting.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Glomp to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

17



18



